
 

 
 

Law & Democracy 
Democratic Services 

 

 

 

TO COUNCILLOR: 
 

L A Bentley (Chair) 
G A Boulter 

Mrs L M Broadley (Vice-Chair) 
F S Broadley 

Mrs S Z Haq 
Miss P V Joshi 

J Kaufman 
Miss A Kaur 

C D Kozlowski 
Mrs H E Loydall 

R E R Morris 
Dr I K Ridley 

 

Dear Sir or Madam 
 

I hereby SUMMON you to attend a meeting of the DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE to be 
held BY REMOTE VIDEO CONFERENCE (SEE INSTRUCTIONS BELOW) on THURSDAY, 25 
JUNE 2020 at 6.00 PM for the transaction of the business set out in the Agenda below. 

 

 Yours faithfully 
 

 

Council Offices 
Wigston 
17 June 2020 

 
 

Mrs Anne E Court 
Chief Executive 

 

SPECIAL NOTE: 

This remote meeting is convened and held in accordance with section 78 of the Coronavirus 
Act 2020 and the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of 

Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 

to which Part 4, Section 1A of the Council's Constitution (Remote Meeting Procedure Rules) 
will apply. This meeting is open to the press and public to observe by streaming the meeting’s 
live proceedings. Instructions regarding the access arrangements for this meeting are below.  

 

I T E M  N O . A G E N D A P A G E  N O ’ S 

 

 Remote Video Conference | Instructions  

 This meeting will take place as a remote video conference. 
 
Meeting Participants: 
 
Zoom Video Conferencing Webinar 
 
A webinar invitation will be sent by e-mail to all Members, Officers and 
Registered Public Speakers for this meeting. 
  
Press & Public Access: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Con’t 

~ Page 1 ~

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2020/7/section/78/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2020/7/section/78/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/392/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/392/contents/made
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=352&bcr=1&info=1&MD=Constitution


 

Development Control Committee 
(Remote Video Conference) 
Thursday, 25 June 2020 

 Printed and published by Democratic Services,  
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices, 

Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR 
 

YouTube Live Stream 
 
A direct link to the live stream of the meeting's proceedings on the Council's 
YouTube Channel is below. 
 
https://youtu.be/N-lmUz3VLns  

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from Members to determine the quorum of the 
meeting in accordance with Rule 7 of Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 

2.   Appointment of Substitutes  

 To appoint substitute Members in accordance with Rule 26 of Part 4 of the 
Constitution and the Substitution Procedure Rules. 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members are reminded that any declaration of interest should be made having 
regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct. In particular, Members must make 
clear the nature of the interest and whether it is 'pecuniary' or ‘non-pecuniary'. 

 

4.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 4 - 6 

 To read, confirm and sign the minutes of the previous meeting in accordance 
with Rule 19 of Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 

5.   Report of the Development Control Manager (June 2020) 8 - 16 

 Report of the Development Control Manager  

 a.   Application No. 20/00041/COU - 5 & 7 Tollgate Close, Oadby, 
Leicestershire, LE2 4TZ 

 

  Report of the Planning Control Officer  

 
For more information, please contact: 

 
Democratic Services 

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council 
Council Offices 

Station Road, Wigston 
Leicestershire  

LE18 2DR 
 

t:  (0116) 257 2775 
e:  democratic.services@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 

~ Page 2 ~

https://youtu.be/N-lmUz3VLns


 

Development Control Committee 
(Remote Video Conference) 
Thursday, 25 June 2020 

 Printed and published by Democratic Services,  
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices, 

Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR 
 

 
You can access all available public meeting documents  

and audio-visual live streams and recordings electronically on: 
 

  

  

    

Our website oadby-
wigston.gov.uk under 

'Your Council’ and 
‘Meeting Dates, 

Agendas & Minutes’  

Your smart iPad, 
Android or 

Windows tablet 
device with the 

‘Modern.Gov’ app 

Our YouTube Channel 
ow.ly/FYQW50zDNkc 
or smart device with the 

‘YouTube’ app 
(facilitated by ‘Zoom’) 

Our audio platform 
soundcloud.com/ 
oadbywigstonbc or 
smart device with the 
‘SoundCloud’ app 

 

 

~ Page 3 ~

https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://moderngov.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/modern-gov/id1453414073?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/moderngov/9pfpjqcvz8nl
http://ow.ly/FYQW50zDNkc
https://apps.apple.com/us/app/youtube-watch-listen-stream/id544007664
https://zoom.us/
https://soundcloud.com/oadbywigstonbc
https://soundcloud.com/oadbywigstonbc
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/soundcloud-music-audio/id336353151?mt=8
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/soundcloud-music-audio/id336353151?mt=8


Development Control Committee (Remote Video Conference) 
Thursday, 21 May 2020 

Chair’s 
Initials  

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE HELD BY 
REMOTE VIDEO CONFERENCE ON THURSDAY, 21 MAY 2020 COMMENCING AT 6.00 PM 

 
PRESENT (BY REMOTE LINK) 

 

 
L A Bentley Chair 
Mrs L M Broadley Vice-Chair 
 

COUNCILLORS  
 
G A Boulter 
F S Broadley 
Mrs S Z Haq 
Miss P V Joshi 
J Kaufman 
C D Kozlowski 
Mrs H E Loydall 
R E R Morris 
Dr I K Ridley 

 
 
(Left the meeting at 6.55 pm) 

  

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE (BY REMOTE LINK) 
 
S J Ball Trainee Solicitor (acting as the Democratic Services Officer) 
D M Gill Head of Law & Democracy / Monitoring Officer 
A Matthews Planning Control Officer 
R Redford Development Control Manager 
A Thorpe Head of Built Environment 
S Tucker Democratic & Electoral Services Manager / Deputy Monitoring Officer 
 

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE (BY REMOTE LINK) 
 
Cllr N Alam Ward Councillor (Oadby Grange) 
T Ayres Public Speaker (Applicant/Agent) 
Mr M Drew Public Speaker (Applicant/Agent) 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Miss A Kaur. 

2.   APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
None. 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor C D Kozlowski declared a non-pecuniary interest with regard to application no. 
19/00474/REM (HM Young Offenders Institute Glen Parva) insofar as potential connections 
associated with her employer. 
 
Councillor Mrs Samia Haq declared a pecuniary interest with regard to application no. 
19/00523/REM (Land Opposite, Stoughton Farm Park) insofar being a neighbour consultee 
and likely impact the development would have on her residential property. 

4.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

~ Page 4 ~

Agenda Item 4



Development Control Committee (Remote Video Conference) 
Thursday, 21 May 2020 

Chair’s 
Initials  

 

 

By affirmation of the meeting, it was 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 February 2020 be taken as 
read, confirmed and signed. 

5.    REPORT OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER (MAY 2020) 

5a.   APPLICATION NO. 19/00474/REM - HM YOUNG OFFENDERS INSTITUTE GLEN 
PARVA, TIGERS ROAD, WIGSTON, LEICESTERSHIRE, LE18 4TN 
 
Mr M Drew spoke upon the application on behalf of the applicant. 
 
The Committee gave consideration to the report (as set out at pages 8 - 20 of the agenda 
reports pack) with reference to the Officers’ Presentation (as set out at slides 3 - 11) which 
asked it to determine a reserved matters submission for the demolition of the existing 
HMYOI Glen Parva and construction of a new prison (Use Class C2a). 
 
It was moved by Councillor R E R Morris, seconded by Councillor G A Boulter and 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
An informative be added such to the effect that the applicant and the developer 
be requested to carefully consider the routing of the proposed systems for the 
disposal of surface water and foul sewage, with particular regard to be given to 
the adjacent residential properties off Crete Avenue  in terms of an 
arrangement of routing whereby the proposed systems can avoid the same. 
 
It was moved by the Chair, seconded by the Vice-Chair and 
 
RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The application be GRANTED planning permission in accordance with the 
submitted documents and plans subject to the prescribed conditions. 

 
Votes For  10 
Votes Against 0 
Abstentions  1 

5b.   APPLICATION NO. 19/00523/REM & 19/00524/REM - LAND OPPOSITE, 
STOUGHTON FARM PARK, GARTREE ROAD, OADBY, LEICESTERSHIRE, LE2 2FB 
 
In accordance with Rule 7.2 of Part 4 of the Constitution, the Chair moved for the order of 
business to be altered such that application no. 19/00523/REM (item 5b) and 
19/00524/REM (item 5c) be jointly-considered as a single item of business (item 5b). 
  
By affirmation of the meeting, it was 
  
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
  
The order of business be altered accordingly. 
 
Having declared a pecuniary interest, Councillor Mrs S Z Haq left the meeting at 6:55 pm 
and took no part in the debate on the planning application and voting thereon. 

~ Page 5 ~



Development Control Committee (Remote Video Conference) 
Thursday, 21 May 2020 

Chair’s 
Initials  

 

 

Councillor N Alam spoke upon the application as the Ward Councillor. 
 
Mr T Ayres spoke upon the application on behalf of the applicant. 
 
The Committee gave consideration to the report(s) (as set out at pages 21 - 52 of the 
agenda reports pack) with reference to the Officers’ Presentation (as set out at slides 12 - 
34) which asked it to determine two reserved matters submissions for the appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale of 310 dwellings (application no. 19/00523/REM) and a 91 
space car park (application no. 19/00524/REM) respectively. 
 
It was moved by the Chair, seconded by the Vice-Chair and 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The application no. 19/00523/REM be GRANTED planning permission in 
accordance with the submitted documents and plans subject to the prescribed 
conditions. 

 
It was moved by the Chair, seconded by Councillor F S Broadley and 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The application no. 19/00524/REM be GRANTED planning permission in 
accordance with the submitted documents and plans subject to the prescribed 
conditions. 

 
THE MEETING CLOSED AT 7.58 PM 

 
 

   

 Chair 
 

 Thursday, 25 June 2020 
 

 
 

Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, 
Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR 

~ Page 6 ~



Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

 

Application Number Address 
  
Report Items  

  

a.  20/00041/COU 5 & 7 Tollgate Close 
Oadby 
Leicestershire 
LE2 4TZ 

 

a.    

   

 

  

~ Page 7 ~

Agenda Item 5



Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

a. 20/00041/COU 5 & 7 Tollgate Close 
Oadby 
Leicestershire 
LE2 4TZ 

 

 18 March 2020 Change of use of two semi-detached houses (C3) to 
be used to accommodate children from Ofsted as a 
children's home in a residential area (C2). 

 Case Officer Michael Smith 

 

 
 
 
© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Oadby & Wigston Borough Council LA100023293 Published 2014 

 
  

~ Page 8 ~



Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

Site and Location 
 
This application relates to a pair of new semi-detached three bedroom dwellings located on 
the Bloor Homes residential development estate, Cottage Farm. The estate, located off 
Glen Road in Oadby, is currently under construction with the two properties being part of 
the early phase of the development.  
 
Description of Proposal 
 
The proposal involves the change of use of the two properties from single residential 
dwellings within Use Class C3 to a use falling within Use Class C2 to be used to 
accommodate children as a children's home in a residential area. 
 
The decision that the proposal, involves the change of use from a C3 residential dwelling to 
a C2 use,  was based on the consideration that the proposal involves 5 of the 6 bedrooms 
being occupied by residents but the sixth bedroom will be used as an office and the use will 
be providing on site 24 hour care with a rotation of staff.  Use Class C2 Residential 
institutions  being defined as - Residential care homes, hospitals, nursing homes, boarding 
schools, residential colleges and training centres.  
 
The applicants, in support of the proposals, have provided the following information about 
the proposed use:  
 
In their original submission they advised that the occupation of the properties would be for 
children refereed to them by OFSTED. 
 
They also stated that the application relates to 2 x 3 bedroom properties 5 bedrooms  of 
which would be used to accommodate 1 child per bedroom and the sixth bedroom would be 
used as a manager’s office / staff office. The children would be looked after 24/7 by carers 
in a shift pattern of day and nightshift staff.  
 
In addition they have provided the following information:  
 
“1.  In this establishment we will be looking after children of age 8-17 years, these may be 

children with Learning Disabilities or of Emotional Behaviour Disorder. The idea is these 
children need to be raised in a homely environment in the same way I would live with 
my children whether they have learning disability or not. 

 
2.  These children may be coming from broken homes and they are under social services 

but needs to be cared for so that they could get along with their lives by attending 
school and focus on what they want to do just like an another child raised by his or her 
parents. 

 
3.  So us as an organisation we come in to provide a home and family environment for 

them and Carers who look after them 24/7. In other words similar to foster parents.” 
 
The statutory determination period for this application expired on the 13 May 2020 and it is 
intended to issue a decision as soon as practicably possible after the Committee meeting.   
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
The sites have no relevant planning history. 

~ Page 9 ~



Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

Consultations 
 
Care Quality Commission – Comment: 
As the independent regulator of health and adult social care, we would be unable to 
comment on the attached consultation request.  
 
The CQC is the independent regulator of health and adult social care services in England. 
We make sure that the care provided by hospitals, dentists, ambulances, care homes and 
home-care agencies meets government standards of quality and safety. For more 
information please visit our website by clicking here. Our remit is defined by the Health and 
Social Care Act (HSCA) 2008 and gives us the responsibility for checking that every care 
provider registered with us meets important standards of quality and safety.  If we find 
evidence that the provider has not met the requirements of the regulations, we will take 
action where necessary. 
 
OFSTED –  Ofsted has no involvement in applicant’s planning permission applications. In 
regards to the other query Ofsted does not refer children to social care provisions, these 
referrals are done through the Local Authority. 
 
East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG – No comments received. 
  
Leicestershire County Council Social Services – No comments received. 
  
Representations 
 
Neighbours have been informed and a site notice placed with 17 letters of objection being 
received at the time of writing this report.  The date for the receipt of comments expired on 
the 7 May 2020. 
 
The reasons for objection can be summarised as follows: - 
 
* We were told by Bloor Homes that Cottage Farm will be a residential development only.  

Planning permission was granted by the council for Bloor Homes to build 3 and 4 
privately owned housing, therefore, clearly this development was meant to be family 
properties and not even starter houses, never mind a business of this type.  

 
* Moreover, the building is not suitable for this type of business as they are two semi 

detached houses and structure is not allowed to be amended without Bloor Home 
approval. 

 
*  This type of business is not appropriate in Cottage Farm due to noise and general 

disturbance it would cause in an extremely quiet cul de sac where these properties are 
located right in the middle. 

 
*  Disturbance would be caused through the type of children they would house (research 

suggests this) and also increased traffic through careers, family visitors and friends of 
five different children. This would be greater than two families. 

 
* Furthermore, not all residents will be aware of the application due to the fact that many 

have exchanged contracts and not yet moved into the property. Therefore, they won’t 
be able to voice their opinions. 

 

~ Page 10 ~



Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

* Also, I was told by my neighbour who inquired about this matter with Bloor Homes that 
they are unaware about this. 

 
*  Moreover, only 13 houses were consulted yet, there are far more properties in the 

proximity which would be affected. 
 
* Although we feel that there may be a need for this type of care for children, and are 

sympathetic to the difficult situation these children clearly have found themselves, we 
firmly believe that this is not the right location or neighbourhood for this type of 
children’s care home, which we will outline below. 

 
* According to the Deeds of our Property, and we believe, all other properties on this 

development, the houses should only be used as family residential homes. 
 
*  However, if this is why the company have sought planning permission, I expect all 

residents, purchased these houses on the understanding that they were only going to 
be used as private family residential houses due to this clause, which makes this very 
clear. Therefore, we do not think it is acceptable for this planning permission to be 
granted to change this critical element of the Deeds and a key consideration of why we 
purchased a new build property. 

 
* We also find this unacceptable as this is so soon after the purchase of the houses. Most 

the houses on the development were completed less than a year ago, with ourselves 
only being 7-8 months; we do not believe it is satisfactory for this element of the Deeds 
to be overturned. 

 
* We would also like to raise the fact that Oadby & Wigston Borough Council granted the 

original planning permission to Bloor Homes Ltd for 150 dwellings for C3 use, with Bloor 
Homes Ltd development plan for the private residential only containing three and four 
bedroom houses. This therefore is also going against the original planning permission 
granted to Bloor Homes Ltd, and this development was clearly not meant to have a 
property of this type. 

 
* Furthermore, with the timing of this application being so close to the sale of the 

properties and the fact no one has taken residence in properties since they were 
purchased, we can only conclude that the owners did not intend in inhabit the houses 
as set out in the Deeds. 

 
* We also have further points, which we are in no doubt you will be aware, but would 

also like to raise as consideration in the planning application process. 
 
* This is very much a new development with Phase 1 only partly completed. Therefore, 

there a large number of future residents, who have exchanged contracts and are now 
awaiting completion of their new build houses, who will not be aware of this planning 
application. Therefore, they are not being given the chance to be able to review and 
voice their opinion if they wish to do so. 

 
* Sales Office on site is closed. 
 
In addition a letter has been received from the developer, Bloor Homes, which includes 
copies of letters sent to the owners of the two dwellings which also raises concerns about 
the proposals as follows:  

~ Page 11 ~



Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

  
“We are aware of the current planning application 20/00041/COU and we write to advise the 
authority that we have today sent letters (attached) to the owners of the properties that the 
proposed activities in the applications they have submitted would place them in breach of 
covenants contained in their purchase contracts. We also confirm it would be our intention 
to inforce these covenants in the high court.” 
 
Councillor J Kaufman has requested that the application be determined by the Committee on 
the grounds of concerns for local residents. 
 
Relevant Planning Policies 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Oadby and Wigston Local Plan 
 
Local Plan Policy 6  : High Quality Design and Materials 
Local Plan Policy 11  : Housing Choices 
Local Plan Policy 26  : Sustainable Transport and Initiatives 
Local Plan Policy 34 : Car Parking 
 
Supplementary Planning Document/Other Guidance 
 
Leicestershire Highways Design Guide  
 
Planning Considerations: 
 
The main issue to consider in the determination of this application is as follows: 
 
* The impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential properties. 
 
Nos 5 and 7 Tollgate Close are a pair of semi detached 3 bedroom dwellings located on the 
new Bloor Homes housing development off Glen Road in Oadby. The housing estate 
contains a mixture of house types, sizes and tenures and is located on the edge of the urban 
area of Oadby with good access to services and facilities.  
 
With regards to the properties themselves, the proposals require no external alterations to 
the properties. Each has a separate rear garden area and space on the front to 
accommodate 2 x 2 cars, which is in accordance with the Leicestershire County Council 
Highways Design Guide and should be adequate for the use proposed.   
 
Oadby and Wigston Local Plan Policy 11 – Housing Choices; suggests that the Council ‘will 
support the development of … specialist care accommodation … that meets an identified 
need and is proposed in appropriate sustainable locations’. The Policy goes on to suggest 
that all residential proposals will need to reflect / respect the character of the area in which 
they are located. 
 
Policy 26 – Sustainable Transport and Initiatives suggests that all new development 
proposals should be located and designed to reduce the need to travel by private modes of 
transport, and, that where the development proposal is of a significant scale, it must be 
accompanied by a transport assessment and / or a travel plan.  
 

~ Page 12 ~



Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

Policy 34 – Car Parking suggests that all new development proposals will be required to 
provide car parking and servicing space in accordance with the parking standards as set out 
in the Leicestershire Highways Design Guide (or equivalent). 
 
Considerable objection has been received from existing residents most of whom have only 
just purchased the properties and indeed some of the nearby dwellings have yet to be 
occupied. However, the fact that this is a new housing development as yet incomplete and, 
therefore, not fully occupied and not a well established residential area does not preclude 
this type of use being proposed and accepted. It is evidently a use that is considered 
appropriate in a primarily residential area whether it is new or much more established.   
 
The applicants have advised that there is considerable demand for the provision of this type 
of accommodation to accommodate young people up to the age of 18. The proposal would 
see the properties occupied by up to 5 children between the ages of 7 and 18 with on site 
24/7 care provided. The applicants have also advised that the children may be coming from 
broken homes and are under social services care but need to be cared for in order that they 
can be raised in a homely environment and attend local schools. It is proposed that one of 
the bedrooms be used as an office and to accommodate staff who will be on site 24/7. In 
essence this is a primarily residential use which would be most suited to a residential area 
rather than a commercial or industrial location. Housing development on this site has been 
allowed as it is considered to be a suitable sustainable location for housing with good access 
to services including local schools and facilities.  
 
Concerns have, however, been raised that this is not a suitable location for this type of use 
as well as about potential noise and disturbance to other local residents, the amount of 
traffic that the use might generate and the fact that when neighbours purchased their 
property the developers Bloor Homes included a covenant on the properties within the 
development that they should be used only as single residential dwellings.  In addition, 
reference has been made to a previous Care Quality Commission (CQC) report on the 
applicants company which highlights some deficiencies in their operation of other premises. 
The CQC has responded to our consultation as indicated setting out it is unable to comment 
on this particular proposal. Nevertheless, they have stated that their remit gives them the 
responsibility for checking that every care provider registered with them  meets important 
standards of quality and safety.  If they find evidence that the provider has not met the 
requirements of the regulations, they will take action where necessary. 
 
Clearly with any residential property the possibility exists that residents including any 
children could cause noise and disturbance to neighbouring occupiers, however, this could 
equally apply to a single family with a number of children and there is no way of assessing 
that the children to be accommodated within these two properties would cause any greater 
noise and disturbance than any other family. 
 
It has already been considered that as the two properties each have two car parking spaces 
this level is sufficient to accommodate any staff visiting the site. There is no suggestion that 
using the two properties as proposed would in any way lead to an increase in traffic coming 
to and from the properties, indeed it is possible that occupation of the two dwellings 
independently would increase traffic movements. 
 
With regard to the covenant on the use of the properties imposed by the developers Bloor 
Homes we have received a communication from the developers legal officers who have 
advised that (i) the covenant on the use of the properties as single dwellings does exist, (ii) 

~ Page 13 ~



Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

that they have advised the owners of the two dwellings accordingly and (iii) that they intend 
to enforce the terms of the covenant should the use commence.  
 
The covenant was imposed by the developers and not the Local Planning Authority resulting 
in the LPA having no rights to enforce the terms and conditions of the Covenant. As a result 
this does not preclude the LPA from issuing a favourable decision on the application even 
though Bloor Homes may stop the development by other legal means. 
 
Conclusion 
 
In conclusion, although the application is for a change of use from a C3 residential dwelling 
to a C2 use, in this case the use proposed is for the provision of residential accommodation 
with care to people in need of care, which in itself is an appropriate use in a residential 
location. 
 
Notwithstanding any decision reached on the application, it is likely that the developers 
Bloor Homes will enforce the terms of their covenant on the two properties and seek to stop 
the use commencing, however, from a planning perspective there are no reasonable 
grounds to refuse this application.    
 
It is, therefore, recommended for approval subject to conditions. 
 
Implications Statement 
 

Health No Significant implications 

Environment No Significant implications 

Community Safety No Significant implications 

Human Rights The rights of the applicant to develop his property has to be 
balanced against the rights of neighbours. 

Equal Opportunities No Significant implications 

Risk Assessment No Significant implications 

Value for Money No Significant implications 

Equalities No Significant implications 

Legal No Significant implications 

 
Recommendation 
 
For the reasons set out in the above report, PERMIT subject to the following conditions: 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission.  
 Reason: To conform with Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 

Order 1987 (as amended) or the provision of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended) or any orders revoking 
and re-enacting those Orders, this permission shall relate to the use of the premises 

~ Page 14 ~



Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

to accommodate children from Ofsted as a children's home in a residential area (C2)  
as described in your application and for no other purpose including any other 
purpose within Class C2       

 Reason: To ensure any future use of the premises does not adversely affect the 
amenities of the locality in accordance with Policies 6,11 and 34 of the Oadby and 
Wigston Local Plan 2011-2031 

 
 3 The development hereby approved shall only be operated by A&R Guardian Services, 

as the applicant, in accordance with the submitted and approved details.  
 Reason: To ensure the development is used solely by the applicant in accordance 

with their operations as set out and considered as part of this application. 
 
 4 Upon the termination of the lease, and or vacation of the unit by the occupier 

specified in Condition 6 or the closure of the development hereby permitted, the 
units shall be returned to their previous uses as residential dwellings falling within 
Use Class C3 of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 2015 (as 
amended) or any subsequent amendment to the Order.  

 Reason: To ensure the units are returned to the use within Use Class C3 for 
residential dwellings. 

 
 5 Unless otherwise first approved in writing (by means of a Non-material 

Amendment/Minor Material Amendment or a new Planning Permission) by the Local 
Planning Authority the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved plans and particulars listed in the schedule below.  

   
 Application Form and accompanying letter from A&R Guardian Services Ltd submitted 

to and received by the Local Planning Authority on 11 February 2020  
 Additional information on the proposals as set out in the e-mail received by the Local 

Planning Authority on the 28 April 2020  
 Site location and block plan received by the Local Planning Authority on 19 March 

2020  
   
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted by this permission and 

in the interests of proper planning. 
 
Note(s) to Applicant : 
 
 1 You are advised that any amendments to the approved plans will require either a 

Non-Material amendment application, a Minor Material Amendment application or a 
new planning application.  If this is the case then you should allow at least 8 weeks 
before the intended start date to gain approval for such amendments. Further advice 
can be obtained by contacting the Planning Section of the Council on any 
amendments (internal or external). 

 
 2 The Application as submitted was, on balance, considered to be acceptable and 

whilst discussions with the applicant were held to seek a higher quality of 
development the originally submitted development is not considered to be bad 
enough to warrant refusal of the application.  The Local Planning Authority has 
therefore acted pro-actively to secure a sustainable form of development in line with 
the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38) and in 
accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 

~ Page 15 ~



Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

Appeals to the Secretary of State  
   
If you are aggrieved by the decision of your local planning authority to refuse permission for 
the proposed development or to grant it subject to conditions, then you can appeal to the 
Secretary of State under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.   
   
If you want to appeal against your local planning authority's decision then you must do so 
within 6 months of the date of this notice.  
   
Appeals can be made online at: https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate.  If you are 
unable to access the online appeal form, please contact the Planning Inspectorate to obtain 
a paper copy of the appeal form on tel: 0303 444 5000.  
   
The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal but will not 
normally be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse 
the delay in giving notice of appeal.  
   
The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to the Secretary of State that 
the local planning authority could not have granted planning permission for the proposed 
development or could not have granted it without the conditions they imposed, having 
regard to the statutory requirements, to the provisions of any development order and to any 
directions given under a development order.    
   
If you intend to submit an appeal that you would like examined by inquiry then you must 
notify the Local Planning Authority and Planning Inspectorate 
(inquiryappeals@planninginspectorate.gov.uk) at least 10 days before submitting the 
appeal. Further details are on GOV.UK.  
   
Purchase Notices  
   
If either the local planning authority or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop 
land or grants it subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put the land 
to a reasonably beneficial use in its existing state nor render the land capable of a 
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would 
be permitted.  
   
In these circumstances, the owner may serve a purchase notice on the Council (District 
Council, London Borough Council or Common Council of the City of London) in whose area 
the land is situated. This notice will require the Council to purchase his interest in the land in 
accordance with the provisions of Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
  

~ Page 16 ~

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Development Control Committee 
25 June 2020 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
a. 20/00041/COU 
 
 

~ Page 17 ~


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Report of the Development Control Manager (June 2020)

